RICHARD L. MORTON

At the time of these interviews Dr. Richard L. Morton was one of
the oldest, if not the oldest, member of the William and Mary community,
having arrived in 1919 as the entire history department. As chairman
of the department he continued to build it until his retirement in
1959, Duning this time he was active both as a teacher and as a writer,

serving as editor of the third series of the William and Mary Quarterly

from its inception in 1944 until 1946 :::. writing a two-volume study,

Colonial Virginia, volume 3 of the History of Virginiaj and editing

Hugh Jones's The Present State of Virginia. 1In the spring of 1974,

with Dr. Morton approaching the age of eighty-five, the new social
sciences building at William and Mary was named Morton Hall in his honor.
These interviews were taped in March and April 1973 before the
beginning of the oral history program. A graduate student in the his-
tory department, Rebecca Mitchell, was given an assistantship to research
and conduct these interviews. Dr. Maton's death in August 1974 came be-
fore transcription began; neither is Ms Mitchell available to help clear
up some of the unclear passages in the tape and transcript. The time
period covered in the three interviews does not include his entire
career at the college, and I do not know if other interviews were planned.
Only slight changes of grammar and notes of explamation have been added

to the transcript.
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Richard L. Morton

March 23, 1973 Willamsbueg | Va.
Mitchell: What was William and Mary like when you first came here in
1919? It was quite a small school at the time.
Morton: It was a typical small college of that period;of course npone
of those collegegzgé;é compared with colleges toda%gmrb2¥ou
take Harvard; Harvard was a relatively small university. I Knew mest ot the
men teaching in the history department, for example, there s

S Kivee

~end:9ere ~ there were 16 members in the faculty and they
> 4"

couia all meet in a room like thiziané ;here werl 306 students,
81 of whom were women(r fhat was in thézr sophomore yea%%;@
ARG PRSI WOMETY
Mitchell: Women first came in 19182
Morton: {0ﬂ$:;;gnt coeducational,
Mitchell: You were hired to teach hiétory and political science. What kind
of courses did you start out teaching?
Morton: Well, of course, I taught courses in United States govermment and
later on I used comparative government but ?gon't remember
that far back. But Idid have to teach United States history;

Cthe Q;ras}cle;\“k did) R
the college required that which I didn't like because a lot

A hadn 't
of—3%- had gotten disgusted with it in high school and found
A

it interesting.
Mitchell: So you had to liven it up for them?

Morton: What I wanted to do was let them rest on it for awhile and take
hts"bo{:tj was
European history. I thought Eumo@eaﬂ background for
/\ [J/‘A‘la'j
all history, Furepesn-histerys but as long as President Chandler
A



was president, you had United States history. I did shock

him one time.: I used Beard and Beard's Rise of the American

extirely
Civilization )whlch was considered too rad:.cal at that time. It did make them
hink: A
?‘hey) enjoyed :Lt but &

some of the parents were writing me. - /fma.gine thatf
Mitchell: Kind of got people excited. I was reading in the catalog
that you taught one course in which you used movies that
were prepared by the Yalg Press. Do you remember
that?
Morton: That wasn't me )but one of the members of the department.
Mitchell: That was somebody else in the department?
Morton: Yes. And that course in colonial Williamsburg and :
life in the colonial period that Jlmd;agi; taught. o -
Mitchell: This was about 1925.
Morton: I don't know. 1925 -- I had gotten somebody in by that time; I got

L

Mr. G@oai\j\‘ “in in 1921. He was a Rhodes scholar and I told
you about I;im. Every%ime I brought somebody else in I had
to work up a new course for tﬁ» students because we were sup-
posed to teach fifteen hourss ¢ourse s I could teach twelve
hours )belng head of the departmen‘c but in those early days
~teach [olasses .,
we all had to go ¢ extens:c.onA eachlné classes . at- different
times in Richmond, Newport News, Norfolk.
Mitchell: Was this all teaching American history(.
Morton: I'd teach history, govermnment -- all of them. The president
wanted me to substitute one day for a class em—__and- N OCean

Yransportation down:'in Newport News ) I refused. He said 5



go myself." But he didn't go, I'm sure.

Mitehell: You also taught a course in constitutional law at William
and Mary, dida't you?
ot She b caed
Morton: I had to teach that because one of the membersf\wanted it
*baught a.nd it isn't a bad course to have bat I know one

day coming out of chapel -—mmh“was-méze #€ 0ld chapel
book
-- no-back rests, just plain, old-fashioned pews and I
A

don't believe we even had a place to put hymn books. They

didn't on the front);‘ Anduhio-saids I was coming out ef with Cecal <ud he&e.u)
-the-~ <ts—the "Dr. Hughes wants somebody
to teach American constitutional law." And I said, "Well, I
had one class at Harvard)but I don't consider myself a consti-
tutional lawyer." "Well, Morton, you teach constitutional
law” He also\g?eied a course in English constitutional his-
tory. " ind Gooah said, "I had a class at Oxford in
English constitutional history." "Well, that's your class.™
Cbis@mssicy\ ot when tis occured 3 g YT T
It was in the first three years -- it was after 1921. It
was probably 1922, 1'23.
Mitchell: 1921 was when you split the history and the government deparé-
ments?
Morton: ¥es. Mr. ﬁi Gooch was still a member of my department -- at
first he was counted in,\ but I think it's the next catalog,

maybe, they put it in a separate heading )which was good) and

he was by himself from there.



Mitchell:

Morton:

Mitchell:

Morton:

@ e

Acourse I had at Harvard that I enjoyed as much as any course

One of the courses that I read about in the catalog was a
course called, "Problems in United States History." Do

you remember that as sort of a research seminar?ﬁﬁ?ﬁg@

I didn't call that a seminar. It wasn't enough of a graduate
courses ;t was a senior course. I had a few graduate
students in'it. I always objected to graduate students
coming here in those daygs I advised them not to come.

One girl came here from Washington state, name of Wakers,

and I said -~ I was the only one teaching history at that

A

time; we may have had a man teaching the freshman section
but anyhow I said, "Who in the world advised you to come
here to take graduate courses?" She said, "The people at
the Universitywof Washington." I said, "Well, that's a

compliment to me>then.but I don't think they should.® Any-

)
how she stuck it out; she had to stay ,but she never did

write her thesis. She didn't have time. $he got a job
) ‘
Bl Lhe
in the Library of Congress. I-sti}l think she'é\inhPibrary
of Congress. A few years ago I did get a letter from her.

So you did have some graduate students in those years?

s [eemer Holle 1
Oh,yes. Of couge, the dean of the collegg«was the head of

the education department, and he thought anybody could take

)

graduate courses. He didn't worry much about who was giving

them, how man¥§bnvamemm ceuese I had to fit in

another course about that timglanﬂwfmgaid- the-~

I ever had was Jrotesscor Chanming's History 23  which was an



Mitchell:

advanced seminar cours%dand he chose about a2 dozen people to
- 3

be in the cours%jga& ge wass;riting that six-volume history
of the United States ;hat you see on the right up there on
the top -- I think it's six volumes, maybe it's seven -- and
he.picked people, I think, that would have some different
locations and probably different interests. BEach one of us
in that class had to lecture three hours each semester.

The first lecture took up an outline of your topic =-- bibli-
ography and then outline. He'd comment on your bibliography
and then the other two hours were the topic itself. One time
I had the early canals and railroads and steamboats(éeginning
with the first steamboat on the Hudson back in 1807, the coming
of the steamboats, the Erie Canal, gpd all thag. It's a
fascinating subject because }eu-useéalmost entirely travel

A

books and old documentiﬁand‘jhat came in mighty handy one time

when a group of students from Columbia came in some years after

-

to my general American history course and I'd just about gotten

to the beginning of that period( canals) and I had left all

my notes at home_;nd they had a delegation from Columbia down .
visiting 'tj’\ﬁ’— they weve. yi tsrbng d¥ferenst sohools )

there l;stsaing—%e class because A And I said,

"Well, I'll give them %QEEChanning." I gave the two hours in

one; I had no trouble at al%BaﬁﬂrMiss Alsop)who was the presi-

dent's cousin and his secretar% said she felt that was the best

i)o*e@&%‘&‘tx on
lecture I gave that year. I said, "Well, I dd ne ,

Did you use the similar technique-as Dr. Channing's in your

classes like this "Problems in United States History?"



Morton: He describes his course -- Sam Morison was in the course “&fnot

then but later)and he gives a description of it in by ;and and

“A b after —
by sea. Of course, I couldn't pattern that exactly but I gave
e Bt 4 y

. [
the students topics and they wrote bibliographi/.(s)and I cri-

edit=a
ticized the technique , every%ha:ng—la- the bibliographies. I

didn't make them speak aJ&, together from Justjg:)cﬁtllne. I
remember how scared I was for three days. You couldn't have
notes unless there was a particular quotation and you wanted
to be exact, you know, but it was good experience.
Mitchell: You had been working and doing research with original materials.
Morton: And, of course, j/:iad to be bssed o what books and so forth
they could get in our library here and they found very much din=

)
here/s® there was alst o scopee matetinl

)

people wouldn't suspect.
£
Mitchell: You mentioned to me, also, teaching a course on (European History

3
Since 191k that was quite a new thing.
O 2
Morton: I had to teach European history)’"j taghtall history uvnt.l

I got a man in here to teach BEuropean history, a young chap.

es
Oh, I dropped my government c:lass47 Thete=

. . sSometn Mg ‘%cf\ 3IN
gave them over to &{Geoch, except extensiorgan@ I

had studenés-in-there, a lot of veterans in that class -- that's
191l to '18, you see. They Wnew ume-all about the trenches

and gas attacks and all that )but they hadn't seen it in the

broad vista of the whole thing and the background to it @nd® -~ —

J
the peace treatieg and that kind of thlngOso I gave this
=

course, Europe Since 191 h, PN Petore N and This othetr o

o Y W
v S aete LN



wrote The Opigins of the War -~ I can't think of his name.

Anyhow, the first year I had to devote myself almost entirely
to the campaigns; in fact, I didf ertirely because there
was nothing else to do; you see, it started in 191L;Oa~n@}he
students liked it because it gave them a bigger, bird's e/ye
view of their trenches and so on. They knew what happened at
@eﬁ?f:éﬁé“&?é@ or the Battle of the Mawvne or the
swing through Belgium and all that. I had two excellent books

whe Unew Wis Slecgraphy
written by a historian A -~ I think he was a -pheto~ geo ~

grapher ptrimarily@b@, ‘ge called it Battlefields of the War -~
Douglas “\j\/\\igﬁ:&s Johngon was his name. He was a professor
at Hopkins Oand"rre

Then, of course, I had considerable works coming out on the
battles and so forthyso it wasgto mes an interesting course
to give .\I was a vebteran, too. I had gone in on one eye, and

the first thing I got into was what they called "limited ser-
Mmeitbel “Gesting
vice." I could get into the (psychologn.cal examiner -—

L gsve thep the &\53\\@) ‘t:he, bé:ta> the Stonhord - Rinet

25@ I had to go up a’%ahile to Wyshington and interviewed Major

ey Keebfeuec' hesed ob te Yerless- @N&&eg t:—-st’}

in his office. He was Nead o the whole psychological

business with the title of major. I didn't feel so bad}j%haﬂ:j

I came out as a corporal@aﬁ%er—&eam—i:ng—aﬁ—abow The Phd.s in Q>5¢jef/‘°l°(jf3
in the group that graduated at Camp Greenleaf at

Chickamaugua Battlefield ey got to be sergeantsaa&mthaw

=t
#028-PhvDSnin. pSy But anyhow thon-afser I £imthod the

z A



eut
war,\gradually.._ ,t(eople called it my "war course)" which I didn't

like T dida't ke >  just have war, anyhow. Then I took
up the making of the treaty ani the component parts, for example,
of modern Yugoslavia and Czechoslovakia, the different ele-
ments that went into that, the different fragments e=mme~from

the ethnological derivations and all that yuhich :.fx?ahéaed@ -and-
-—- We
Ehe types of govermnent/\ #ook up the new govermments, com=

Z streggie bebween Yie
munism in Russia, the Russian Revolution, the4 Bolsheviks and

6

ler, the whole philosophy, and then the further we got from thst - —
; Then we book v things Ost were g olng on,
that phased out moreybr;/fless A But in discussing the origin h

the. -~ Pra mented
of the states we went back toﬂhistorical bac»%mvnéd Europe,,

the Mensheviks and so forth Da:aér then I took up Germany and Hit-

bat I learned a lot in these courses.(é)?%ourse s there's

ke, that ‘ ~N A\
no course/:o‘}f‘.'ered how in the Ool\eae 3 @ Then later on
I worked it up on the way to class practically because
it meant long hours and a lot of work in the 1ibrar;25ba% I
who came (n te courses

was giving new people1 they knew most about.
/

I For- instenas ‘%:0{‘ YTouler Lo wishe to @;\6?&5530(\ V\QN‘:W\QX\ (I\e “t;ﬁhb
ﬁﬁ. Tudors and 3{;&4@:9(:83@!\& ot @cutse he wes &

specialist
A \
in Spanish history of the same period}aﬁ@ I'didn't
have to persuade but I advised Mr. Bryan to let us

start history here with European history, western Europe, which

at
he did. He let me do it liXe HQS{»\“G\ 4 Harvard. and Mr. Fowler
}‘ J < )
e wes gwsdoabing v ~thete. }
gave a section of that, He wori}ed in the system so when—he—eam T Knew he aouly
@365 the 3:10“=em in hete, So when he came lf;hg;b wes his
ot . particular field , , And since
)5'\61 3&\16 a
he had his Ph.D. in the Tudors and Stuarts bthere-were course;é
/\ .



e

in Tudorsand Stuart® Mr. McCully came; e had written his
A

thesis on some phase of -ti§- education in India)and British

Empire was: his field at Columbia so that was his course.

)

And, after all, you learn history no matter what it is and
it's better to let a man teach a course that he's all fired
up abou“% so that's the way the thing developed. That's the

-

regson Fo;ﬂer teaches Tudors and Stuarts@ /and then I decided
7

I would teach social history. That's Oaﬁdther course I intro-
duced that I got a lot of fun out of. ‘;iourse s I had to work
it up from scratch. 1
Mitchell: What sort of material did you cover in that course?
Morton: Well, I never did have time to organize it like I wanted to;bwts
it was morg,&r/iess hand-to-mouth existence for me but-F~abanied

©
«0ub }n the first place I took up kind of the soecial background
to Arfxerican politics. I mean the difference between Jeffer-
sonian democracy and Hamiltonian and
work@g in that field. One phase I found a lot of interest in )
and that was in the great period of reform. I think it was
Emerson who said, "Everybody  was reforming everybody but him-
self." And there was a lot of good material on that. (WVelers
To bocks he has on American social history.>
I had that for parallel. They fought for women's rights, temperance,
end laws against gambling, and all that. There are a lot of “Ghose
-&%s reforms, R
For example, the man that Coyner is working on -- itts—met—his—tr

he's won deptil
/4\10ne @'aipiece of work ¢wn a picture of John Hartwell Cocke's



10
plantation. Well, Swem went to ”@rem@ 7 and bought whats he could finded
his 1ibrary) and we have the annual reports of the American
Temperance Un;i_ono\eardL this man was a Virginia planter and a
big slave::holder, but he didn't believe in SIavery. He was

interested in church movements. He was interested in any

kind of improvement (that i_s,, the James River Canal ran by his

wete
home) and those annual reports o¥e flne;( For example, I

gave some lectures on the development of prison reform and

along with that the treatment of the insane who were occu~

piled prisoners St one tine md—-so(;‘&ve have&/\ " here we—have
@-man that subscribed to the Boston Prison Disa: §)me, SoQbeﬁcg\ )
g they set aoisu{ejmmlssames down through the south )and one man

z

came down through the §outh and took notes on what he saw -~ I
think he was selling Bibles L -~ and he discovered
that we had an insane asylum in Williamsburg rbe&@assadhusetts
had the first one)bﬁﬁ he gave an inside picture of prisons and
things of that kind -a;nd then later
wim g & z
thereﬂwefe a whole series of documents on labor movement, hoours
of labor_) and all that kind of thing, so I worked that up
into an introductory lecture.
do o &{
Mitchell: You did some work on your/z dissertation on Negro history. Did
you ever teach anything on that at William and Mary?
Morton: Well, in m%irginia history;;~%hat's another thing I was dragooned
into. In order to teach ad to teach Virginia h:Lstory andg of
s-tovg

course, I didn't mind learning some about V:.rglnla/{ I wanted to

know something about it because my people have been in Virginia



11

since Jamestown. Fact is, they—were one of the original
owners of Jamestown was my ancestor(;zamed Mavt{au) ~and-
pEhey-were-around and also at Yorktown named Rea;gandéheyf 're
still living there, my little nieces and nephewé . Reav-

one of his descend;nts went to the University of Pennsyl-
vania m;dical school, and I have a book that he owned: Charles

Ae
Lewis Regx{éaad- I think he bought it while he was in Philadelphia:

American Gardner by Macmillan,which is a valuble book now,

Dbhots )
published 1803. But;(anyhowﬂmy people were among the first
\,\/k;\‘\,\/eﬂ}‘{: with ‘the Randol %h-s Yo
people,/\ up the James and up the Chickahominy, Farm-

ville and up the little branches, went into Felden L 23 and
that river and settled up in that country, Piedmont country --

Prince Edward and Char]zgtte -~ and lived there ever since. Ny
-+ o m
father was born on land thert a grant was made in the days of
Ave b o h:m>
George:- IT. I don't want to say thgjc George gﬁ % but

{He ?
anyhow it was in that period amd helped av@;mize-a:}l that
/A

county)"and one of my ancestgrs was the founder of Hampden-Sidney
College. In the place where I was borns-my father bought it in
the '80s 4380, '81> ~-- that was a mile and a half from my mother's
father's birthplace >and that had been in the family since about
the Revolution or earlier. So you see I have ties righ% there

[ have ) N I hove in thete o \etier
amtwith some |etlers ;) Tet instanae my grandfather

A ) A
weste Fom Cuba in 1845,  Thob.mom=bhat-came~ap-thePeRhon—-
-heto- he got on this trip for his health;
;
dtoo&-ﬁf\d'bv?dp dn
he had /1(% How he I dor't know but he lived to:old

A ) "
Py vo-and I like to read)’&nd-my famil:g’ies
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Used tbo

Aread mainly novels )_\T—_V&t\ hoe and all

>
that sort,so that was interesting.

Mitchell: So teaching and writing about Virginia history came quite

naturally, then.
- . . Vinginta
S . ( .
Morton: Yes. (\eoyie didot Know ebeovt A ~The people in Richmond

took out cartloads of state documents and dumped them in the
James Rivez"ﬂto make room for some other things they wanted
to put in there. They sold to the Huntington Library a
collection bj 2 man named:Bro QJI() W/fhe Huntington

bought it for $S0,000)I think. They could have gotten

~the
$35,000 in Richmond>but that's in Huntington Library now,

. ' J[Lwe hayel
They sert the contents of it, a photostat of the
- A

contents in our library of that collection. Itds a pretty

good -sized collection. It was new territory. study of
was | iKe =

Virginia history going back to ancient Rome almost Oand@ee&-
1 - =

coursey—-E-wesinterested-in-the-=="when I was at the university

z -
I had done some research in that. For a masters thesis~ in Che
i Stote Vebl sad
"worﬂ:tif’éeminar class I wrote "Virginia/\ Internal Improvements,

1820-1865)" or something like that. Anyhow, in writing that,
I went into state documents@ ‘andr Ehe old library in Richmond ~cwasn't air-condi-
Ticved or a.nything) 4 and some i of the documents I used were in the dome

of the capita‘]a and-~T~frernt-in-the-etoset-and :ghe commissioner of
=

transportation or whatever he is /men‘t.up 4in his secretary!'s

T
closet, through a door into the attic and/lworked on those

)

&
things. I scared the secretary to death when Ijkame down.

Anyhow, it's fascinating,you know. I've seen the charter of
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the NorSo) K snd. Western §ailway up there in longhand --nobody

Mitchell:

Morton:

v

had a typewriter for it. Soﬂl'd gone into the journals

and documents of the legislative bodies and governors)*ané%

messages and the newspapers. I spent a whole summer reading

newspapers. /éhat was after I came here, thoughu//% But all

that fascinated me.

One thing I wanted to ask you about was some of your impressions

o}% the students. You mentioned having after the war a number

of veterans in your classes. This period after the war was a

time of growth for the college ) ;( lot more students came here.

What was your impression R the students and the quality of

their work?

T%ou“&ﬁ%eterans especially good. They were serious )and%

they had lost several years and they were a very serious group.
las was )

Vernon Nunn was one of ’chem> Biihop iez:‘;l:;;; who went to Alsska

later as bishop - EVe% navVa/Y\d &Z!v.‘et’ce;i from somebody about

that perioc%:f?nd ‘gext month one of my-students, class of 192l, Cwil) come )

eame here. ;Ie g;aduated here in 192L and he went up to Phila-

delphia. He studied law and went in with S.M.G. or whateveriit<

is insurance; he's retired now. He gives a very interesting

account of his first trip here. He's going to do something for

the history department )J—: O—QJ\“&SQ\L’ Qﬁgﬁauseagﬁ&e}%vﬁtle thing

ish't  arranged-but-h

)
-or-afterwards: Some of these old alumni -- he could tell
Labo\}bj
you some really good stor:s.es is first evening off the train

Q_oﬂ\t\(\j U To
down here Q&é‘he—ea%ledﬁip the college in 1920.
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Mitchell: Arlot of the students were training to be teachers. Did you

find that that was becoming less so?

+they
Morton: TYou see, in -- when was it? 1888}1 thim{zft was -- had-a normal
A hostble thing , A

department here A ;bhey had two departments:department

of psychology and department of education. The head of the

department of education taught in the psychology department too )
the head of the psychology department taught in the education
department. It was all mixed up 3 the two departments. But
the state did need trained teachers badly) and they did have,
I imagine, a right strong faculty. I know one man; I still
remember him. He was here when I came G-Dbut }t was considered
by some people in the state as kind of a normal school )

)

but I think they had about as good a faculty}if not better )
than they had at Hampden~Sidney. You see, Hampden-Sidney new when T was there

Wo.S ., -
kis/\ cé\‘ven smaller than this place )baabA they*e® got over a hun~-

Lhey

dred students ,\whe-!-ve announced it (n @J’\e@e\ ’ The presi-
would ’

den’c/\get,é’ up and say_a', "I'm proud to announce that we have

was
120 students at the college this year." And he 5 always bragging

on the age of Hampden-Sidney -~ older than the Declotstin "%$7\dePeﬂdsd@eJ
older than the gonstitution of the United States. It's good to
have something to brag about. We brag about our history)which
is oll Mgi\“b)If thin i

3



Session 2

April L, 1973
Mitchell: What were some of your activities as a member of the advisory
committee of historians for Colonial Williamsburg?
Morton: ZFhey We were especially close to Colonial Williamsburg since

Dr. Goodwin's secretary was helping me pay for my ofg‘]ice by
Worthes
renting 11:@ was attached to the main part of ’che hous

Sy

it was most tantalizing to see where Dr. Goodm.n”q bought a

-

L
-

house here or there and to know that nobody knew where the
money came from . Some thought at first it was Henry Ford ,

and there were a lot of guesses but the secretary kept it

)
all to herself. She did write a diary and that diary -2

Colonial Williamsburg has ardf@ry that tells about her

being here. But the Restoration,\ reallyg#ithe idea;" I sup-

[ehn . R coketeller
was conceived in Williamsburg -and-Dr. Goodwin’\came

) )
down to a 1926 celebration of Phi Beta Kappa and to dedicate

pose

Phi Beta Kappa Hall, a new hall being built, and he and Dr.

Goodwin -- As Dr. Goodwin said, he dared any wealthy man to

come near him, He couild 8 5 mohey Frem him., (ﬁ\e co Fecze
em Plogjé’cL him on cemmiss) on to oolleat Meney Jor them \
gu’c. anyhow he said he went around the block and accidentally

let Mr. Rockefeller ,~who~hed seeéf—{}\e bioalk

one moonlight nigh‘%%jwm It was an interesting old

city in spite of the/\service stationsit had )taking in part of

the colonial architecture . All the plans were made and Mr.
Rockefeller started., Fhe company

. sboe 1931y
employed this @Os‘b@\ Titm A Df. Goodwin got acquainged
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with that through accident. One of the members of the
Me, Cerey ([o{l;(
firm <% Perry, Shaw)& Hepburn endudipemPermeacame dOWN.,

1
%r. Goodwin was restoring the Wythe house as an addition
o

-

to the church )and Mr. Perry sent him a lock, I think, to
match his door so that's where he ot acﬁei«mﬁ . Anyhow,
it was very lucky because he wes o ,‘Scseo\ mon 0 hove hete “Hien
Well, they hadg#7of coursg/(to reconstruct these ancient
buildings. They had two — — ‘H‘e\j wete @%&;QQUS thet v B;b\es
to start with. One was the"Frenchman's Map)"which some=-
body discovered in a junk shop in New York. It was
sent down some years ago. And the other was a copper _

the \odg Tt Pound e plsbe was ore o e two .%ocmin\g M this house,
plate IA the-fellow-that- ~found-the-copper—
plate—was—tiving [hey went ‘o iz England jwent to the
library at Oxford[ Bod]'.;:-.é.nﬁLibrar;}@ exd-Dr. Andrews years
ago had prepared a bibliography or a list of documents in

t he British archives that he thought that scholars ought

was a town

to be interested in)and one of those things A in America.
And he said, why they put a ‘town in with all the
didote

written documents he doesntt know)but-thej did éaad»}ghen Miss

- Goodwin, Yr. Goodwin's niece, went there with Miss Camerém;_who
2,
was a friend of hers, they worked together..The: Bod]/.\ian Li-

brary has an unusual collection of copper plates. They kept

betere

hauling out copper plates/{ﬂm‘bil they came to this one. Miss

_bl,\
Goodwin said that e was a very nice gentleman,and he couldn't
Lhe
resist the requests of ladies to bring out more plates,)and
q

f'inally/i there was this plate. And they recognigzed it as
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soon as they saw it.ang Ehey ashled overthe desails of it, the
outline of it. I think ;’c cost Mr. Rockefeller about $15,000.
The whole back of that building was changed -- the "@am
bulldlng‘{ was changed. It had all those little gables they
put il@b@ix:ﬁhen they had to huni://( of cours?/(house;;plans) and
rough sketcl:es of those were found in an old insurance com-
pany in Richmond in the archives@an@gf course, they had the
location of the homes in the "Frenchm;n‘s Map." The French-
man was probably a billeting officer looking for places for
French soldiers to stay -- that's what some people think) but
evidently he didn't have much to do. He put in every house ,

every outhouse, everything on that map and they found the

)
foundations where he said they were. The man theg Seayred
at that time began a systematic search for manuscm’.pts)and

that was Mr. Harold R. Shurtlefiéaad‘h@wbegemam Er}e only

way you could get an authentic account was by desc:riptions of

the houses. I might say one of the most interesting descrip-

G"g W, ) l&MSl)Lu'\ﬁ

tionsAwas found in a book by the second professor of math at
the College of William and Mary named Hugh Jones, his Present
State of Virginia. He describes the main buildings and mentions

v o Governcr Ke ith
' Spo%swood as an architect@&'rd A of Pemmsylvania, I be-

lieve it was, also mentioned the fact that he was the first
architect and ma thematician -and-( f course, Jones was a mathe-

Pather
maticia%o that must have been ive%y fascinating to deal with
() '
such a mano‘bﬂ-b ;;e gave a very, very general, very good account
%
of Williamsburg and its people. Ther%’ a little later on Mr.
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Shurtleff decided that some of this material could be used for

publication) but he died. Colonial Williamsburg had ajgj ready

planned the publishing of historic books dealing withhaw- [ocgely with
—~renceviliey Virginia and Williamsburg@mﬂéj en after his

death the work of research in this material/ fell on the New

director of the department of research and records)and that

was Hunter D. F;r:f/ish. Hunter D. E:rrish was a Harvard man.

He'd studied under Schlesinger. He was interested in social

history as well as po‘litical)and he began editing a new

series of scholarly books )oi‘ which he's still editor. Fachish "\&A

e C
s o R ew Le) been &cst( ng with his-

torians. In 1939 a organization of historians{ an advisory
committee of historians it was called) was set up by Mr.
F?rrish. It met once a year in New York in the RC{building
and once a year down here, sometimes itwice a year, and we
charted a course of Cl.oﬁ‘—f?hen‘bj that should be printed. One of
them was tl@ Philip Fithian's journal. One of the Rockefeller: would

act as chairman of our meetings,and at first itwes Mr. Rockefeller Lo D, @CO,KG‘?&“M‘)
QJ:x::f?)himsel%, then one of his sons@f—em gha.'b organization, of course,

met at a time when the country was still suffering from the pmnic

called the Great Depression . It wasn't too active at first

)

a
but we kept things going , and Mr. Fgrrish did publish¢ before he

)
was taken ill and finally died/?'some very gocd books in his

/MY H“ﬁh Jenes
series but the books that we recommended {and ~Journat

) A Lot Early Ametiozn Higtory and
was one of them> were ;published by the J;.nstitute A The insti- Cultue]

tute took over his program and they did publish houis Wights edition
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of Bever\y’s History of Virginia. That is,he published the first
Che of the

edition -~ anyway, there—wasn't—but two editions -- but Hugh
A 3lgo in

Jones is so close to him in time and/kcontent that they thought

it wise not to take it. (I found afterwards I could have found
>

a Pairl Y successful publisher for Colonial Williamsburg.B

coerl
- In 1943 President Pomfret called me into his office )a.nd he
A

said, "Dick, we've got to combine-ati—ef our resouree%i‘or re-

search with those of Colonial Williamsburg." He and BribKef'}”\‘?th %?‘\eﬂ 3
: me,‘_}‘dir,ector of Colonial Williamsburg, had alif@ready talked

about the whole thing)‘aaf discussed it) and different ones of

us had been called in to discuss i'b(Bx!é’ @%@o@b clecl&ee\ pow was thet! me ;

and-he-saidyiPhe-Lirst-bhing-we WaHt to qg™ I O voursey

s o~
Swem was retiring. He had put in all/\"eheae leffg_éover articles
Lo%the William sid Mavy Guarter\y , Secend se Mes ]
in the last copy ( one of them Was Dean Landrum's artiéle,:I think, on
A

Hugh dJones ),) but he had stopped collecting articles for awhile, & 5
not knowing it was going to be continuedéand Pomfret said what

we need to do is join forces and use our William and Mary

uarterly as ancorgan of the institute or whatever it was ( o the
- - l:\; outpatd .

groupoaaad he said it should be a national;-“it—shouidthave
-z he was ;

just like Mr. (3ryan /(a,s looking #fito the origins both in France

z

and England of colonial Virginia or anywhere else. The time [to be coversd |

’

Pomfret made veryhbroadxwhich gave great leeway -—/éarly america ’

took it down to first about 1812)and now it's gone still fur-

Lhis
ther. TYou see, Colonial Williamsburg -- blebswes allAbeyond
Virginia and beyond Williamsburg — — was a little out of thep

&g territory because they were specializing in Virginia itself

{5y
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and éolonial Williamsburg but the institute could branch out)

-
7~

)

so the two made . very good partners in this whole %hing%lxas!ness‘

That was in the spring and when news leaked out that the old

guarterly, which had really done a good service because Swem

z Leheyd

was careful and before him Tyler, both:{had been rumning it for

fifty years. What they put in was substantial historg;VOr

genealogy(gnd a lot of people were interested in genealogj), NE=

did help historians in collecting manuscripts and things )

and it was used as kind of a public relations magazine.
[they'd 3

If the college wanted to confer favor on someone, glve them

a subscription to the 9uarterly. I had noq&payln%éub-

3 Qon“c{;&\wow inetns
scribers. Some said that was/\ it waiabut I had

to have a list of them, For instance, the student who
g C‘Ofcln,, &‘ »
made highest grades in Vlrglnla was given a quarterly for

life end-e8-longas.. until - a- fow years ﬁﬁey
stopped 1t(fthe 1nst1tute dl@ which was r1gh%§nﬂr-v—v

It was in th%ilddle of the depression. It was in the middle
of a war, a real war -- I mean war in this country as well as
abroad. They were sinking torpedo boats in the Chesapeake
Bay&aﬁytorpedos were sinking American ships right there off
the coast of Nbrfolk;and getting money was a problem. What I
did when I found out I'd have to take over, I went over to

Dr. Swem!s to get the filesyand I got one of those combination

Quu:\‘b(\:( StHhore g
expansive blll holders \Jmat used téﬁse. Ao fabhemgube

Seribers

' ™
and, of course, a lot of them were nongpaying subscribers,

P
s

o~
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4

honorary subscribers.\ Well, then the next thing was to find

an off:i.ce7 and I found a little vacant room up there. I hunted

N
around and found a second\ﬁ/hand typewriter. At that time the
college was allowing us student aid. I think it was #,78 an hoor )
bt ynad a student to write letters so many hours a week -and
éha't/‘ was the whole staff; I was everything. I had to make
arrangements with the printercfaé the printer was a man in

Lhe 7
Richmond haad -ia ~glove with politicia,ns) and he printed
government documents year after year. All he'd have to do

was change a heading here and there. He d.d Swenm's

quarterly, too,and Swem didn't care when it came outAthe first

)
¥ o
of the month or the m‘iddlelof the mon‘th;/\ didn't worry him at
all. Another thing about Swem -- and I want to say that I
have the most respect for him because he was an institution,
no doubt about that /\but J{ his idea of editing armagazine was
let each author use his own systeméan’a' it's easier on the
edi'tozéaﬂd I was hard-put to get materials, but we had a very
ke bous Wi givts,
good set <4 on the board -~ that people/cl&ke&-\,i.o_wmteg_?

He's got twenty-eight honorary degrees now,, ead then of course
and %

there was Andrews, near the end of his days, Wm’tenhaker and
/\

others. The first thing I did was ask Andrews for a contri-

bution. T asked them all, anybody who'd eround—thatld—

done a paper, please sendme a . . . 35t men were n The ’EHVL:()' L&bme&
j;qzsvdlfwn here Qn a parachute company. First time he saw

Williamsburg was when he was jumping out in a parachute up there St

old Forb Eustis busy—er The Prevessers were bosy ' e
. 1) -
dodntt hove Eime to Teol ot St
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E&‘ﬁ?‘\@«i% o e Mhel‘\; ;
Anyhow, I did get some of the edibems.” I was especially
4 hes wolumes
counting on Andrews; findrews had apthen oUb‘/\ up there, and-

as a matter of fact, dwe~the last one, not long before that, he showed vt me

P

when he was down at the inn. He had a manuscript in his arms. He
>~

z

said, "Now\/ZI’ve finished." And I said, "Well, how about
this period you didn't cover?" He said, "Well, you can't do
everything." So he didn't. He wrote me)" I)fe said, "I think

1
I have one I can give you." And then he died. #:ouldn't
ot

write up to Mrs. Andrews -- course, we knew Mrs. Andrews very
4

well -- and say, "Did your husband leave us any articles?"

But he got in touch with Lsbaree [hfuas his assistant then, ~e
and LQba?ee got in touch with Mr. Pomfret and said that
there.}égg—esome. In the first placegZhe had an article) "Advice
to Students," for young students( people in the colonial field)

that he -  intended to publish while he was alive.and that

)
Fa-n Somebody got a bibliography of his writings )and

I got about three articles and a picture that the family con-
sidered the best
seonted-do-

—of-his as a frontispiece .and that was the

)
first number of the guarterly. It came out -~ it didn't come directly

on time )I know because I phoned up to Mr. Pomfret. I said,

"The quarterly is here." "Hold everything!" he said, "I'll be

-

right down." I was in the Goodwin Building office then )and he

ot
came streaking down there@aﬂd-(l was air-conditioned)and he said,
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So he was delighted. But then I had to prepare the models

to be sent out to different states, (F‘ewi{d them separately,
student assa.stants( I had two by then)a:nd I remem-

ber:one of them sorted them out by the states amd=shE=pst

~right-in-the-middie-but-Lfortunately-dt-wasmit arrd-she-

Aada-Whole-roomy-soried-them-by-stabes and tied them up in

bundles for the mail. And the printer -~ I would go up once a
monthia:n% usually I had to sit on the step behind the driver's
seat because transportation was something awful in those days CH\ ey Wete

ané/still building military camps esmd@®all around here)but what

;,,

I did was I had a little datebook and put down each time I went
up there/how long I had to wait for‘him/fand everything. I
had trouble getting offprints from him, everythin%aﬁ&ginally
¥ when Bh:&.%augl/\ came —~— (&hé"‘f“chink

~o
-he.\,was.here} ~Wher-hexeeme we got talking about the printer

. (@4
and I wanted to get another printer in Richmond beeasuse—they wh s

were b ght with ne
printed the American Historical Revn.ewob'a‘ﬁ they/\ nd

I said, "Now look, I can give you a list of his derélictions

to go by. This is a case against him. This is what ¥ have to

<
go through with." They took it up and the governmg% changed printers
[as cad‘;%cv:(/w\
without any trouble >but that was after my day,\ But it was
wa
a most interesting experience because I h;_ygd. a book review edi-
unt I ——
tor angr contacted one of my colleagues)who :later became editor
A
LA‘&’)H‘ l .
anyhow, you know who he is, But I got a regular assis-
tant g nncan pd in addition to student assis-

tants and then I went up to Richmond to the pecple whe made carden

—

BN
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systemsand got something in place of that thing Da, Swem had iKe
grocery store:Q;;'ll%ing and had it all arrangedé)‘aaq?l could

tell right off by looking at it -~ of course, there were

signals in it -- which were ordinary subscribers and so

forthl’}?ut. it was such a good system that Louis Wright)who

was thzn director of the Huntington Library) said he

wanted to put it in in his place and told Douglass Adair,

my book review editor, and Douglass said, "Well, Dick
y 2

Morton's secretary made that u%aﬁd—ﬁae—&eﬁger—- L

But all that was fun)in a way lzut Jjust keeping:one article
ahead was quite a job}—baa@ W those three years
-~ T took it all the way fklrough the third volume, 'hl, 'L5,
and 'h6, }emd: in the meantime Beldenbagh was braght in as
assistant edito: and said all I need to do was sit and make
plans for it. I said, "I'1ll do that after I leave(j)' so I
took it all the way through -- of course, the assista;xt did

i £ . . i
help in the proofreading. I was glad I did tha%:%eveﬂauee I

"? found out :uafter that one of the reasons that & Dartm outh Gol(eg,e
. was that
; gave ©ridedbouhhis Phi Beta Kappa key . he started the Wil-

liam and Mary Quarterly as a national magazine/,?aad— Idn't

know why they're having all this foundation for Mr. Adair. - Fcr his worlh oo
cjcnc\er Lin Oa(ofdma:(, W\a\‘jbeu
, But he was a br ight person, no doubt about that,and he

could do good work. Now what else about the magazine? Was

there anything there?

wepe gyou Sofly
Mitchell: Well, you—decided to give it up after three years?
A

Morton: After three years..  There-is-one-titng-F-haventt-totd-you.
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/iaut the reason I gave it up is this: that I was still a
teacher at the college }and I felt that I could do this ( do
the magazin%)which was a whole job in iteelf -- I couldn't
do that, I couldn't do any research, things I had planned
to do. I had an offer --(Preitice-Hall asked me to write
a one-volume history of Virginia, for example, which I
started on@aa& I found it's no fun writing one volume for the
whole time. It's too confining and it takes. more time to
hoi\ it down than it does to eﬁﬁaadi‘t )and it J.s: ?n?s
teresting. It fsn“casinteresting to me because I like going
into detail. Anyhow, the depression and my delay put an end
to that. They cancelled that fPa"C‘ﬂr&m cancelled in other

did

y )but I dQ feel like I wos

neglec’cﬁei9 my students@and«%mhewén:bh%@mm@%uden%%u’ghw{w

states, too due to the depression
. And that is really one of
the main reasons I did it. I didn't know hows.g v}gs going to
be with Bridenbaugh. Pomfret said, "Are you leaving because
Bridenbaugh is coming in?" And I said, "No, I was going to
leave anyhow." But I got along well with Bridenbaugh. Bri-
denbaugh is one of these -- he has quite a way with him. What
Bridenbaugh wants, he gets )but we got along fine. He was a
great help thg/l\-;a%éfe time he was here with me. But in three
years I had gotten it organizedjaaar@z it was on its feet and
I had things ahead. Now one of the men that was on the board
was Stanley ?@mgal\ s » Who at that time was librarian of

. @e‘b ting Frem the (\«\ar\&gm Gd ‘tpvghp
the Newberry Library and he said, " ~ of the GuarterIy,
3 A P
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you can look back to a job awfully well done." He went on to
say that he didn't think it was going to succeed)bu‘o he kept
quiet about i%j?ﬁQ?he sald to .take an established magazine
at any time and to change its direction was a hard enough jobj°but
e to do it in the middle of a war and depression was wors<e

*“\c" :d_’) b
still.’(Sé%Qhe last issue is a distingijshed one. Any
learned society in the world would be/?ia%%efed~to have
sponsorgd sveh o publication. I congratulate you on

¥
your achievement." That was in Novembe§2(19h6tbat yaon't
(]

regret at all having quit because it didn't hurt it; it's

still going.



Session 3

April 13, 1973 |

Mitchell: Between 1919 and 1925 enrollment jumped from 131 to 900
students. This sort.of seemed to indicate that William and
Mary was doing pretiy well)but there were also signs that
the faculty didn't always agree with what President Chand-
ler was doing‘and in 1925 a group of you founded a local
chapter of the A.A.U.P. Was this an attempt to increase the
influence of the faculty?

Morton: Well, the president was a dictator, absolutely. He fired when
he wanted to; he hired when he wanted to. When I came down
and saw him in Richmond I was telling him what I'd like to do)
and I understood him to say under his breath, "You'll do what

I want you to do." At that time I thought I*d misunderstood
him)but afterwards I found I hadn't. But he was extremely
sensitiwve aqg(ﬁe had been superintendent of schools in Rich-
moné>fnd what he sai%,?went. He was a very good promoterband
he tdld me once that he was not particularly interested in col-
lege work except for the promotion end of it; he'd like to get fold o}
the whez% thing and build it up. I think he was largely
responsible for What success the Jamestown Exposition was.

B

He had charge of thaﬁI é2me years beforifﬁa%”he'd built the

Richmond schools up.éiihe only way you could have your way
(s chagter of the
is do it secretly. We organizequmerlcan Association of Uni~-

versity Professors)and President Chandler sent the word around

~
by the graquyine that he wasn't surprised that Mr. Jacobs

was a memberabut he was surprised that Dr. Morton was a memberc>
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ang’I said, "Well, you take this thing back by the same
grapenvine and tell him that the American Association of

University Professors is a perfectly decent professional

organizatiorb “ir¥svordens. It's not a labor union)and

we're not out to do any damage to him or anything else) »

but we did want to have free discussions."l You couldn't

get very much free discussion in the facult;)é B one of the

>
f

men in the faculty% he had brought down --not because I
2
wanted him but because ‘chould use him in freshmen sections.. —

%e was a high school teacher who taught for Chandler in..

His widow lWes over heve
Richmond. /\«He-‘& now > And I think he was

—

leaking things amd~ I was treasurer or president/,\ anyhow, I
e :

was an officerzgnd }ﬁo’oiced he hadn't paid his dues and I

I3 3)
sa::.d he's not a member so we ruled him out. But Dr. Goodw:.n

/

% told the pres:l.dent :m an open facultyfneetlng "bhat you

treat your faculty Just like a high school principal treats

D) LGoodw A'\J

his faculty and he /\offered to let us meet in his study )whlch

is now the Wythe house. (This fireplace is patterned after

-

that study's fireplace.) We met in his study,and I had one
advantage there I wasn't expecting: we saw the mock-up =~- tall
as this room -~ of Wllllamsburg ?treet/\.MesserPerry, Shaw, and
Hepburn, the architects, thought it shou.ld/t l:t.(ke,.-ﬁt was pre-
pared to show Mr. Rockefeller, to bait him, to encourage hlmjmnm-héswv
to give him some idea what would happen if Williamsburg was re-
V& [Chondlex)

sbbored.% ‘But one place he/\couldn‘t win, too, was in Phi Beta
¥ )

Kappa. The vote is secret. Scratch you, blackball. He-weuld—
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He would put up his friends that he wanted to have political
influence with )and we'd kill them; we'd just mow them down.

And he told me once, "If I had my way,nobody would vote in

Phi Beta Kappa that wasn't initiated in that chapter here."

((ifourse s I was initiated &t the University of V:Lrglm.a )

And I said, "Why is that?" "Well," he said, "I can manage them." T
Was '*E.hctﬂ pe o man . Q’{* ge took care of this excess
population of students by usin; discarded buildings of corr/%tgated
iron,of tar paper, frame and tar paper buildings ,and had them

was of B Paper Dud Trave.
on the campus a;f girls’ dormltory)\ A.nd had one laboratory

along wth
+to buen® ) it was a beautiful pleece Maa: = art of

Y
the dining hall . part of the warehous§ T e
nex ..)which before then was an amunltlon f:.lllng plant for the

IEll "3
Duponts>and the @(aoe was, s1tt;&1ng there when I came and - —

(%;\mmar\ was the name of it before the military took over.

But he was hardworking and he got people here that he thought

) mMae ¢
~- he was even a gullible man. ¥ o man/(he;l-—a big story to
him/ he'd believe it. Virginius Dabney wrote a life of the

first Chandler for the Dictionary of American Biography )

and I think it's a pretty true description of the man. He said
that he saved on salaries and weakened his faculty) which I think
is right. For example, he didn't like the University of Vir-
ginia. He was jealous of the University of Virginia.i‘?ourse s
there was no reason for us competing at that time. The university

wasn't too big. When I graduated there I was the only Ph.D. at

commencement and -we have a much better history department here
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now than we had at the‘gniversity&\much better}\than when

-

I graduated. Virginius Dabney's father was the department)
and when I went to Harvard, the registrar said, "Is that old fool
Dabney teaching all those histories of the world down there?!

)

. . ‘ Wy =k he 7 . .
he is teaching all the WS Qj\w«world." ut this man -- his

_ Trom he valley b
name was Flickengjec -- camgmup—out—of Virginia <and(his father

I said, "Well, he's not an old f0015 ﬁe's a nice gentleman put

was a minister, a large family§fnd Chandler got interested in
him beesuse somebody in the family had said the university was
very unjust to their son. He was trying for a masters’ then.
Well, one moruing I-:came down -~ the doorbell rang -~ and

there was a young man. He said, "Somebody said you had’é room
to rent." I said, "Yes."'?nd he introduced himself, "My name

is F)uﬂkegjex- . Itve juét come to teach in the college." And
I said, "What are you going to teach?" He said, "History and
English." I said, "Well, that'!'s the first é?ﬁéard about it."
But I gave him a place to live and proceded to get rid of him by
degrees. But what I did first was to write up to friends of
mine at the‘gniversity if they knew the man. They said, "Oh,
yes. We fluéied him on his generals." I said, "That's all I
want to know." So Iceme down and talked with Chandler once.

I said, "Dr. Chandler, did you know that Fﬁekeﬂﬂer flunked

on his generals?" "No, I didn't know that." "At the University
of Virginia," I said. After that I didn't need him in his~

tory very much. The English people were swamped>so I got Chimll

English sections)and soon Swem recommended him to a place in
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Yorktown aaa@ he lost that job because he was saying bad
things about Ickeﬁs to his nephew )who was working for me.

He didn't know this was Ickefs' newphew. ( Ickeé‘s Wwas secre-

-

tary of the interior. ) Anyhow, I had another - instant nItonce { @ man )
who hel

ed ‘
~he~devetoped one of the good scholarsg to write &
A

a history of George Washington (I shouldn't be telling
s
this outﬁoud). Chandler said, "Now':- this is second Chandler . ...

Cm Anyhow, for the most part I was able to get people I wanted

and to keep them)but it wasn't always easy to keep them be=
CI. A C. Chandler{

cause- during the depress:.on he sent for me and he sald, "You

EQK //“ he, LUV‘ D
know, I had to fire {ckews today - beca&se@e was historianwte_

A
oty hond=,
‘P(S’boﬂ&lqo&ﬂimucﬁ Eu“me’lwaéﬁhg’ Yes’ (‘b VVQS

before Fowler came.) And I said, "Why did you have to}flre
Ecker?" "You had too many people in the department." That
left me with this high school fellow as the whole department,

and I had one class of 300 people in it, divided into three

& Pefer reader o angt‘nma T had
sections of freshmen and didn't h&ve{\extens:.ons N other attles

and upper classes. And I said, "Well, you've injured the standards

of the college." "Well," he said, "You couldn't make a living
Se\/e,v‘f‘bd \'Pv \/
on your 7% acres up thére in Prince BEdward." What he told me

~—y

first -- he said, "I've got to fire 4cker )and I dont' want any

bellyaching about it." That's the kind of president we had.

l“ HQ ho'&tc{} c"\%‘
I said, "Well, ~Presa.—den*t7 Chandler, I'm nab bellyaching. I

O
don't llkej-the expression."” "I don't elther," he said, "I don't
want any complaints." I said, "I'm not complaining. I'm just

telling you the facts." But that was the depression. He didn't
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o
have to do that. Fourse, then the governor of Virginia cut
A
his salaries down -- and you'll probably see all about that in
Pollard's papers -- but the board éid cut one-fifth off our

salaries, and then restored it.which was good.

)
It sounds like when Dr. Bryan came in 193l that he had quite

a few problems on his hands)then. How did he go about fixing
things up?

WEllgfiﬁqgs\mwealmost all to pieces. The president's nephew ——
it oA houyehiemothers
mephews~Feliove fnhou, Charlie Duke (whofeewite

is Mrs. Phelps now -- very attractive young woman) -- but he

was quite jovial and quite efficient)but he was more interested
in the political side of the business. I think he'd wanted to
be president. Fact is, he told the dean under Pomfret that he
wanted to be president. He thoughﬁithe college finances needed
straightening out)and then?;géy g%é a scholar. But Chandler's
last days-gie pathetic. His wife died of cancer. His children
-~ some of them went astray. He just collapseéégné Ed Kendrew
had charge of the architectural part of restoration}and the

pr931dent's house was part of the Restoratlo%jand he went up

7

one morning to see about something -- he had a key to the door
-~ and he heard Dr. Chandler or President Chandler -- cussing
somebody out>and he said he didn't know there was anybody in
the house, ahd there wasn't. He was cussing himself out. It's
pathetic. The last time he met the faculty was in a wheel-

chair)but he should have given up. He said he didn't expect
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to stay ten years5 I think he stayed about fifteen. The
thing is that the college -~ he couldn't make a go in ten
years so he was determined to build it uppand he was
hell for lesther

Mitchell: How did Dr. Bryan start to fix things? He was appointed
quite immediately after Dr. Chandler's death.

Morton: Well, Mr. Bryan was on the board. Mr. Bryan was a very re-

markable person. He's descended from the Ran'dolphs. He had
that tall build; he didn't havefé?-b%%g window ot bon had ,
but he was an old Virginia gen’clexrg%n. He had one eye. I
think he had an accident horseback riding )and it happened to

be on the opposite from mine so I always sat on his left side

)

when we sat together but you never could tell)“ #J_s artificial
vz

M
eye was very fine-awd he was a Killionaire )and his home in 'Rich-
+ // ’

[0

mond was in a little p;p% called "Laburnum." He owned two
Richmond newspapers and was quite well educated. He went to
the University of Virginia and went to Harvard):g/ took his

law degree at Harvard. He was determined to make this a
scholarly placesf&n!@’ it was very refreshing -- Mr.Bryan was.

I have some pictures in there showing the parties he had when
he was here. One thing about Mr. Bryan;he had Charlie Duke,
most ingenious and fun-loving)as a bursar@and gne day Jim Cog\gr,)
who gave lectures on Colonial Williamsburg - we called

it "Restoratinn /Jlassesff' classes on social history in the
colonial period. Jim was a very good lecturer and had a S%ea\oisﬁ:‘ Qon

sl - '

and that kind of thing,,\~#nd he came and said, "There's
A
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a young man just graduating from Yale this year. I wish we
had him down here. I'd like for him to give lectures in my
course on architecture, history of architecture." -fefiu=d

‘he ' said, "He's a millionaire
7
-

like Mr. Bryan )a.nd he'sogot a job with an architectural firm
in New York,) but he doesn't want to live in New York. He
doesn't want to be crowded around." So, I went to see Mr.
Bryan. Mr. Bryan was very e::thusiastic"’ and he said, "You
get in touch with Dean Meads at Yale." So I wrote to
Dean Nezsc(s , and Dean M;sAs said ;%jhe only doubtful
thing you can say about him is that hé 's good in so many fields,
he'll never settle down to one M Jim Caﬂar/‘:a;lnet him)and he
came down to sketch and paint [ vwatez\@color)in Williamsburg. He
came down. I said, "Well, bring some samples of what you did."
He brought a portfolio. We met in Mr. Bryan's office,and
they talked about Europe. This boy, you know, hadéj\seﬁ; 3

moneys and he'd gone over there in his teen%to Constantinople

of

to pay a visit to the city, and Lord knows where else he'd been.

He showed him his pageants. He put on pageants. For example,

‘there was
at his sister's wedding, a classical pageant, I think .)and he
A .

oane. ;
put on/\here and turned what is now the/\dining hall -~ I don't

whether it's still there or not -- a great big empty room when
o ‘ZY\‘E)O .

we emptied it amd a big banquet hall once. We usually were
A : LB vg)sm_]

at "Laburnum" for a party) at which he/\regaled us with all kinds

of goodies and champagne )but one of his aunts had died, a favorite
Do

aunt, so we met here. So he and Charlie Duke -- oh, I forgot to
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{ale
tell you that we got this young man fr-om/\, :Leslie Cheek, Jr. and®

Les came down and gave the lectures and he was an individual.— —

)
fhe most ingenious person for giving parties@«anel— Ehis time( when we hed V&

g

eight here} Mr. Bryan ordered meals catered in Richmond. I know
Lor exsmple . ’

we had turtle soup)A Les Cheek decorated the hall -~ each
window was a black cardboard figure of a professor in his cap
and gown and a Phi Beta Kappa key hanging by his side -~ in
all the windows. And across the entrance ~- the exit was what
it was -~ going beyond the stage was a huge red devil lighted
up with a red light pand the devil wore a Phi Beta Kappa key
vﬁ.th;‘hcstaz‘f fbwinkling.f ~Oh, it was gra:rlid! And Mr. Bryan had
organized a German band. He'd gotten costumesjoe‘;q-ghta‘ggrti-
cipating,‘a.nd along with the German band was a hillbilly quartet
made up of Professor Marsh, who is here now (past president of
Woflord  College), and one of the other professors named
Stubbs,and one named Scithworth ; and I had t;enoz@gefore I had 3u§*c<_==r .

“to—get—taltier We_ called them the ~- I don't kn;w, some funny
quartet. We were dressed in jeans and red shiris or something
like that 0] gut another time they threw a faculty party
in the basement of ’a'le Wren Building before it wés restored. X

Qow | they
Les Cheek had gotten a cow and purpled the/\ had a purple cow

° * u.s
tied right outside the entrance yand everyone/\eelse had a cos~
tume. I was dressed in my eor@ova\'suniform with a little pointed
; “ [ond ]
het . I founded one with a <bem  zbout that long A a
little flower at the top@a@. I was supposed to represent All

Quiet on the Western Fromt. The head of the English department

%A@@élf\ekt\j D' Metten W!:}(ed e c\,’\\\oﬂc’og:j he!“é’, \(\Cf“&ﬁe Wien @c[(d‘éﬁ
was >Mresdy te stered
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was bald-headed. Somebody painted a beautiful lady on the top
of his head,the bald spot. His natural hair was the 'ilringa*«?réwe Lor
that Yece , ‘ Dessert was an ice cream cone with a
raw wf’t@% on top. It was a great party .’ ~Plrgttgtite
My Be a'xg T
party-desvrived e
A y
from Florida to lead the dances.  When there was a dance
on short notice, he'd fly up here from Florida.
Mitchell: Did he succeed in his plan to raise the academic standards at

this school?

Morton: Oh, I think so. The first thing he did for me -- it was the

‘H\eouak B el
middle of the summer and I had (abo(\eclll here ami I wes—sert—of a little dizzy
, - 4

'3 that morning \anjie called me over to my office )and he says, "Dick ( I don't
know whether he called me Dick that early or not)»w ‘ how, he
said "Dr. Morton," I believe. He says, "I want to know who's
teaching all these courses." You see, Chandler had left the

Here T was
teachers out. It - looked so terrible A He-had-us teaching
everything from ancient history to modern, contemporary.
"Well," I said,"I'm teaching it." "Who's teaching this course?"
I said, "I am." "And that course?" He went all through them. O
¢ourse, somefe—fhus taught next year and some ~ . that year, I
think. He said, "I'm afraid you're going to get sick." I
said, "I'm a@ready sick. And the students are sicker than I
am. I can't give them decent instruction with that load."
"Well," he says, "Whag;;o you want? Who do you want?" I said,
"1 wedt to be able to make European history the basic course
rather than the Americanbecause I think in high school a lot of

them get prejudiced against American history, not interested in
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it, and it's repetitiousymore or less. And I do think

that European history is ;kabasis for the history of the Eng-
lish world." So he said, "Okay." I said, "I'd like to go
get somebody who teaches kisbery-amt History I at Harvard
because he knows the ropes of that course. It's a good
course." And the man that headed the course up was named

. [Fowld &, Fowler
Me‘“\“(‘(‘@W) who oversaw Jim's thesis.jané I'd had a

. T wrcte bo Herriman
class with Mecrimon, so I knew him and he recommended Fow-
B ,'/ -
ler. That's the way Fowler happened to come. (What a hot
dey n  summer, too.\‘
What was the reaction t0 the college's suspension by the
Association of American Universities in 1941?
Used the
You see, Mr. Bryan was not very/\—-—he—-was to/i academic as
A
far as standards and $hed-lkindy credits and all. Well, we
had a dean here who endeared himself to almost everybody be-
cause he let everybody do what ﬁhei wanted to do. If the
students wanted a car, why the president had the lge.y) and he
. have Hhe cac,
would sneak the key out to the studenmty { et him . but the
thing was that he was so good-natured tha't,‘-bhe man wanted
t0 enter West Poin’%jan?ixg had a physics credit here)and
what he needed was a chemistry credit(:,) 1/1e just changed the
report around and gave him credit for chemistry.
Was this Dean Hodges?
Hodges, yes. I don't know what else. I never did get much
entangled in that one way or the other but that was bad

);
enough, anyhowO axd we dug out from under that. But Mr. Bryan
’ : z
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didnZ Vist Upsala | places like
that. He got people from Harvard down here to give lectures

in the chapel. )
[(Foatte 2]
Mitchell: After Bryan retireq;?you were chairman of the committee to
‘ A

search for a new president. Was this the first time that
faculty were involved in selecting the president of the col-
lege?

Morton: So far as I know it was. The faculty -~ I tpink there were
sixteen members of thﬁ%on thejmm /fn other

A
words)a%'big. I agreed with the board it was entirely too

- large to handle,so the board picked out three men.and one
7

Y
of them was very commonfsensqdflawyer in Williamsburg

named Hall)and he was chairman of the board's committee)and

the faculty chose me -~ in that group ~- as chairman of
the subcommittee. I think there were three of ussand we

met in small committees~aﬁa:9£ course, the otheréz;nnected

there were Mumbets
with the college --,\dggen??f People. I thim?%he man most

responsible for *ché%ing Pomfret was a man by the name of

Jackson Davis. Jackson Davis was a member of the general
Z

;ducation poard. He was aéild graduate here and became

z

very well known in his Feld. A fine chop. He did us a lot

but the board was

of gooejbazlphey recommended Pomfret)
- Sout
evenly divided. . we got~a&§4 information from

old

Z ¥
one of my students)who was on Dgilz Press. He couldn't
A A

>but he listened pretty close and found

out what was going on. He had a good nose for news. They

get in the room
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id
voted unanimously -~ they s§x -~ to elect Pomfret. But they
didn't; The vote was split. Pomfret was chosen on those
@Omﬁﬁkﬁbsome of them were very much opposed. They wanted a
politician then. They wanted a school superintendent, I think,
state school superintenden#)but ézgn't say anything about him.

[Pombyet] was

But hgawas chosen and told 1@& a unanimous decision. He had

then
no reason not to believe 1t)aag found out afterwards that he

1 tether Pe ersistent

had -against him right from the beginning a‘« ad powerful

minority.

Mitchell: Was that a problem for him the whole time he was here?
Morton: One of the woré%hproblems he had was a small problem)and it

didn't last long.and that was when the editor of the Flat

)
Hat -- a lady editor -- said she wasn't opposed to white and
black marriage. Of course, in those days that was almost
blasphemy but that blew over. Of course, you've got to con-
sider that event in the light of the times because most
sS.ded with

everybody outside—of what the college haﬁ done -~ I don't

know what they dld with the girl. I think she kept the job,
I'm not sure)but it was quite a discussion over it. :And
that's the only real problem that I know of&except down towards
the end when the athletic coach was caught. He was arranging
gradesytogyaxafilvery affable gentleman .he was and supposed

-

to have a fine influence on the young people in the town and
B(\'é
so forth. But Mr.4Pg%§ret did have on one occasion a coach

that I think was kind of a menace but I won't mention him. The

)
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[MeCrayl — —
thing is this mag\what he did was from the kindness of his
heart and the heart is not supposed to get 1nto the honor
system. Tha?;?naturall%éfzéuld be bad for the honor systen.
But this man -- Pomfret§ taken his side,more or less. What
he wanted to do was let the man down with the least
jolt possiblﬁaéﬁﬁ'Pomfret told me once that he liked to
roll with the puncﬁ;ﬁ He rolled over, that's the trouble.
Well, you see,’ch;dus_uckéﬂ*Tj“cii;é the board seized on this

thing and I suppose they thought Pomfret wasn't particularly

)
anxious to make a great glorified athletic record for the
college. That's another thing that ate them up. I suppose
the pity about this man ”5??;( his wife was a member of the
garden club and a very nice little lady)but she had to go.
Mitchell: During this time the faculty seemed to want to expand their
influence over the academic affairs of the college and also to
have a 1argafrole in the govermment of the college. Was Pom-
fwet receptive to that sort of thing?
Morton: There's one other thing I want to say: the dean of the college
in Pomfret's day was a good friend of mine)and he's presi~
dent of Knox College now =-- 1 cén't think of his name. I know
it as well as anything.% He told me that one reason Pomfret
couldn't get money for buildings and all was because he wanted
to keep Pomfret”in hot water so Pomfret would go and he could
take his place. He said Pomfret would get in trouble up there
and then he'd go up there and straighten things out, you see.. If Pomfret

couldn't get the building he wanted, I suppose he'd go up

* Sh&ovj M\Aecb( T wonder & Dr. Mesten Mmestt that
nﬂﬂec>& Mﬁa:>‘t7§jlﬂﬁ < bloak @%qwg$e§t; I werld devipts b g;y;a/
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and get the building. Anyhow, that was a problem. Pom-
fret -wasn't a man to go and fight for these thlngs and it wouldn't
good cards
have done him any’\ anyhow because he had thg{ee}}ege stacked
against him.
Mitchell Was he treated sort of like an outsider because he wasn't from
Virginia?

Morton: No, no. The presidents of .. the college haven't all -- I bet
you the majority of them haven't been from Virginia, to tell
you the truth. I think if you count them most of them haven't
been from Virginia: Maryland, New York, England I guess. Well,

I think Pomfret was always sympathetic with giving the faculty

1%2 Tine
as much respon51b1b\ S p0551b1%§aaé-he was always "‘fﬂhbb to
me although I think he stinted the department some because he

)

couldn't get: .the board to act always. He called me in one time5
7@ said, "Why are you going to give up editing the magazine?

Is it on account of Bridenbaugh?" I said, "No) I just don't

want
have time to do what Iaeu%h$ to do." The thing&%really;?that
brought it to a head was that I felt all the time I needed more
time because I was teaching about nine hours; I think. The
president told me once, "You know, one of the boys from Norfolk
thought you ought . give them more parallel." I thought, "Well,
el T béﬁber reglect
t 3 1
if I'm neglecting my pere € ’1 something else)so I
decided to get out entirely: And then the magazine ~- the insti-
tute had just gotten a new director and he'd brought in an
/

assistant, an assistant editor)so I thought it was a good time

for me to leave because the magazine could be taken care of.

But I've gone a long ways ahead now.



